Public Document Pack



Barbican Centre Board

Date: WEDNESDAY, 16 NOVEMBER 2022

Time: 11.00 am

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Members: Tom Sleigh (Chair) Alderman Sir William Russell (Deputy Chairman) Tobi Ruth Adebekun (Deputy Chair) Munsur Ali **Deputy Randall Anderson** Asante (External Member) Stephen Bediako (External Member) Farmida Bi, Barbican Centre Trust Alpa Raja Chair (Ex-Officio Member) Tijs Broeke Zulum Elumogo (External Member) Gerard Grech (External Member)

Deputy Ann Holmes Wendy Hyde Deputy Edward Lord Wendy Mead Deputy Graham Packham Mark Page (External Member) Jens Riegelsberger (External Member) Jane Roscoe (External Member) Despina Tstatsas (External Member) Irem Yerdelen Alpa Raia

Enquiries: Ben Dunleavy ben.dunleavy@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Accessing the virtual public meeting

Members of the public can observe this virtual public meeting at the below link: <u>https://youtu.be/HMjogn97kc8</u>

A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of the public meeting for up to one civic year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do not constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on the City of London Corporation's website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of the proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material.

John Barradell Town Clerk and Chief Executive

AGENDA

A number of items on the agenda will have already been considered by the Board's Sub Committees and it is therefore proposed that they be approved or noted without discussion. These have been included in the separate information pack along with other items 'For Information' and appendices to reports. Any Member is able to request that an item be subject to discussion; Members are asked to inform the Town Clerk or Chair of this request prior to the meeting.

1. APOLOGIES

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

3. BOARD MINUTES

To approve the public minutes and summary of the Barbican Centre Board meeting held on 21 September 2022 (to follow).

For Decision

a) Finance and Risk Committee Update

The Chair of the Board to update the Board on the Finance and Risk Committee's meeting on 7 November 2022.

b) Nominations, Effectiveness and Inclusion Committee Update

The Chair of the Board to update the Board on the meeting of the Nominations, Effectiveness and Inclusion Committee on 8 November 2022.

4. MANAGEMENT REPORT BY THE CENTRE'S DIRECTORS

Report of the CEO, Barbican Centre (to follow).

For Decision

5. DRAFT HIGH-LEVEL BUSINESS PLAN 2023/24 - BARBICAN

Report of the CEO, Barbican Centre.

For Decision (Pages 7 - 10)

6. SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

Report of the CEO, Barbican Centre.

For Decision (Pages 11 - 16)

7. BARBICAN CENTRE TRUST - ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Report of the Town Clerk (to follow).

For Decision

Items 8 to 11 are included in the separate Information Pack

12. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

14. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION – That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items, on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of Exempt Information, as defined in Part 1, of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act

For Decision

15. NON-PUBLIC BOARD MINUTES

To agree the non-public Minutes of the Barbican Centre Board meeting held on

For Decision

a) Finance and Risk Committee non-public update

The Chair of the Board to update the Board on the non-public section of the Finance and Risk Committee's meeting on 7 November 2022.

b) Nominations, Effectiveness and Inclusion Committee non-public update

The Chair of the Board to update the Board on the non-public section of the Nominations, Effectiveness and Inclusion Committee's meeting on 8 November 2022.

16. LONDON SYMPHONY ORCHESTRA - ANNUAL REVIEW FOR 2021/22

Report of the Managing Director of the London Symphony Orchestra.

For Discussion (Pages 17 - 24)

17. MANAGEMENT REPORT BY THE CENTRE'S DIRECTORS

Report of the CEO, Barbican Centre (to follow).

For Discussion

18. BARBICAN BUDGET 2023/24

Joint Report of the CEO, Barbican Centre and the Chamberlain.

For Decision (Pages 25 - 34)

19. BARBICAN RENEWAL - PROJECT UPDATE

Report of the CEO, Barbican Centre.

For Discussion (Pages 35 - 42)

Items 20 to 24 are included in the separate Information Pack

25. QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD

26. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

Confidential Agenda

27. CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES

To approve the confidential minutes of the Barbican Centre Board meeting held on 21 September 2022 (to follow).

For Decision

Committee:	Date:
Barbican Centre Finance and Risk Committee	07 11 2022
Barbican Centre Board	16 11 2022
Subject:	Public
Draft High-Level Business Plan 2023/24 - Barbican	
Report of:	For Decision
CEO, Claire Spencer	
Report author:	
Head of Finance, Sarah Wall	

Summary

This report presents for approval the high-level Business Plan for the Barbican for 2023/24.

Recommendation

Members of the Finance and Risk Committee are asked to:

- i. Note the factors taken into consideration in compiling the Barbican Business Plan; and
- ii. Endorse the departmental Business Plan 2023/24 for onward submission to the Barbican Centre Board.

Members of the Barbican Centre Board are asked to:

i. Approve the departmental Business Plan 2023/24.

Main Report

Background

- As part of the new framework for corporate and business planning, departments were asked to produce standardised high-level, 2-side Business Plans for the first time in 2017 for the 2018/19 year. Members generally welcomed these high-level plans for being brief, concise, focused and consistent statements of the key ambitions and objectives for every department. This is something we did not do.
- 2. For 2023/24, the high-level Business Plan has been further evolved to add more narrative and improve readability. The Business Plan does not yet incorporate TOM departmental structure changes. As a high-level plan, this document does not capture the granularity of departmental work but gives the overall picture of departmental activity, customer feedback, trends where applicable and direction of travel.

Draft final high-level Business Plan for 2023/24

- 3. This report presents, at Appendix 1, the draft final high-level Business Plan for 2023/24 for the Barbican.
- 4. We have used the City's template this year as we are in a year of transition as you are aware from the CEO's 90 plan and observations reported at the last Board.
- 5. With our new CEO and Artistic Director, it has become clear that change is needed and that employees want clear direction. The purpose and values work currently being undertaken will underpin all of this. It will give the spine for all our work to grow out of. Though we know areas we need to target which have been laid out in the plan.

6. In order to run the business and monitor performance we need a more granular business plan. We will build this comprehensive business plan over the coming months and next year this new approach will be presented and will incorporate our budget and all key strategies.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

- 7. The Barbican, as a building and through its offer, places itself as a key player within the Destination City strategy. It offers opportunities to attract a wide range of national, international, and local audiences/footfall and plays a pivotal role in the Culture Mile strategy.
- 8. The Barbican is focused on providing opportunities to work with SMEs and freelancers through its programme and commercial enterprise, from freelance artists to local traders, the existence of the Barbican helps provide opportunities for all.
- 9. The Creative Vision sits at the centre of the Barbican Transformation project and will be the driving force behind the Barbican becoming a far more inclusive, diverse, and welcoming international arts and education centre. New creative programmes such as Young Barbican Changemakers and Creative Curriculum mean that the City is opening the doors to young people, supporting them for a future in the creative industry.
- 10. As our Artistic Director is Head of Profession for Culture we will work others departments and partners to enhance and develop the offer with a consolidated focus.

Security implications

11. Not applicable

Financial implications

12. 23/24 is the first full year impact of the 12% efficiency savings cut in funding. The 23/24 budget has now been worked through in a great level of detail and deep dives. We have also adopted a new focused approach on our key business drivers of venue utilisation, capacity and spend per head which has allowed us to start moving towards a business model that is more sustainable. The impact of Covid-19 on the Creative Industry cannot be underestimated. This impact is evident for Music, Visual Arts, and Cinema. Latest reporting in 22/23 indicates that year-to-date box office income is down 23% against budget, where attendance across all art forms (except for Theatre) has been lower than expected. As the UK economy is struggling and inflation rates continue to spike, consumer spending patterns are continuing to change.

Public sector equality duty

13. ED&I has been high on our risk register for some time. Barbican Stories along with the External Review and HR audit gave clear areas of focus though due to the nature of these reviews the actions were reactionary. With dedicated resources to steer us on this journey and organisation ownership for this change agenda at the highest levels, we will start 2023/24 with a clear understanding of where we are and where we want to be with a strategy on how we will achieve that in a proactive way making informed, joined up actions.

Resourcing implications

14. As evident in 22/23 with plant failures and subsequent show cancellations, the existing building and age of our plant means that the building itself is one of our biggest risks to activity. In order to keep the show on the road with a building that is safe, legal and

compliant, significant investment needs to continue through our existing capital and CWP funding to plaster the cracks until a complete overhaul can be had through Barbican Renewal.

Conclusion

15. This report presents the high-level Business Plan for 2023/24 for the Barbican for Members to consider and approve.

Appendices

Appendix 1 – Final high-level Business Plan 2023/24

Sarah Wall

Head of Finance and Business Administration Sarah.wall@barbican.org.uk

Committee(s)	Dated:
Nominations, Effectiveness and Inclusions Committee Barbican Centre Board	8 November 2022 16 November 2022
Subject: Safeguarding Policy and implementation plan	Public
Which outcomes in the City Corporation's Corporate Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?	1, 2, 5
Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or capital spending?	N
If so, how much?	N/A
What is the source of Funding?	N/A
Has this Funding Source been agreed with the Chamberlain's Department?	N/A
Report of: Claire Spencer	For Decision
Report author: Beth Bryan	

Summary

The Barbican Centre, as part of the City of London Corporation, has a legal obligation to safeguard children and adults at risk (The Children Act 1989, The Children Act 2004, Mental Capacity Act 2005, The Care Act 2014). This statutory duty extends to anyone engaging in work (paid or unpaid) or acting on behalf of the Barbican. The Centre's current Safeguarding Policy (May 2021) is out of date and includes incorrect language and reporting procedures. Claire Spencer (she/her) became the Centre's Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) on an interim basis on 1 September 2022. Safeguarding was flagged as a risk on the Corporate Risk Register in September 2022. The mitigations of that risk include updating the Safeguarding Policy and an implementation plan that included increasing awareness and training by April 2023.

The policy presented to the Committee takes measures to ensure our safeguarding responsibilities are held at a senior level and across the Centre, which is best practice. This departs from the previous approach of holding safeguarding duties primarily within the remit of Creative Learning (and formerly as a joint department with Guildhall). It also aligns in structure to the City of London Corporation's Safeguarding Policy (June 2021), which enables the Centre to align its practice to the City and adjust as needed following annual reviews.

The policy has been developed with the support and guidance of a Safeguarding Consultant Lesley Wood (they/them). It includes current reference to current legal statutes and their language, codifies the Centre's duty and defines clearly the responsibilities of the Centre's Safeguarding Champions, Managers and anyone engaging in work (paid or unpaid) on behalf of the Barbican to fulfil this obligation. It also details how anyone working on behalf of the Barbican can fulfil that duty through clear procedures and reporting lines.

Following the approval of an updated Safeguarding Policy, this cover presents a proposed implementation plan for the Centre, which will serve to mitigate the risk as

identified on the Corporate Risk Register and ensure compliance with Safeguarding statutory requirements.

Recommendation(s)

Members of the NEI Committee are asked to:

- Review the policy and implementation plan, and endorse to the Barbican Centre Board
- Offer further suggestions to increase effectiveness and organisational commitment to safeguarding

Members of the Barbican Centre Board are asked to

- Approve the policy and implementation plan
- Appoint a Board Safeguarding Lead to support the Barbican Designated Safeguarding Lead and safeguarding work at the Barbican.

Main Report

Background

- The Barbican Centre, as part of the City of London Corporation, has a legal obligation to safeguard children and adults at risk (The Children Act 1989, The Children Act 2004, Mental Capacity Act 2005, The Care Act 2014). This statutory duty extends to anyone engaging in work (paid or unpaid) or acting on behalf of the Barbican. An out of date Safeguarding Policy, places the Centre in legal risk of breaching this duty of care.
- 2. Historically, safeguarding responsibilities have primarily been held within the Creative Learning Team. A cross-departmental Safeguarding Group, with membership spanning levels of the organisation, has been led by the Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) and Creative Learning. Best practice is to hold this at a senior level across the department to ensure this legal duty of care is actioned upon as required.
- 3. For the years when Creative Learning was a joint department with Guildhall, there was in-house safeguarding expertise, which was drawn upon to ensure actions were taken in accordance with best practice and the law as well as to lead annual training for Creative Learning staff and casuals. When this department shifted to working within the Centre only, this expertise remained with Guildhall. It has been drawn upon on an ad hoc basis in the absence of holding this expertise within the Centre or contracted by the Centre.
- 4. The Centre's current Safeguarding Policy is out of date (May 2021) and includes incorrect language and reporting procedures. In May 2022, the Centre's DSL, Sandeep Dwesar (he/him), commissioned a review of the Centre's policy and procedures with the support of Beth Bryan (she/her) in the Barbican Futures Team. External Consultant Lesley Wood (they/them) was contracted between June and September to review the policy and procedures, lead training for the cross-departmental Safeguarding Group and provide recommendations based on best practice. In the course of Lesley's consulting, they identified incorrect language used in the policy and, apart from Creative Learning, noted a lack of

knowledge on legislation and the signs of abuse and awareness of the Centre's procedures among the cross-departmental Safeguarding Group.

5. Sandeep Dwesar was the Centre's DSL until his departure 31 August 2022. From 1 September, Claire Spencer (she/her) became the DSL on an interim basis. Her DSL training is scheduled for January 2023 and she will be supported by the Centre's Deputy Designated Safeguarding Leads (DDSL) in Creative Learning, Lauren Monaghan-Pisano (she/her) and Natalie Levitt (she/her), until her training has been completed.

Current Position

- 6. The Barbican's current safeguarding policy is out of date (May 2021), includes incorrect safeguarding terminology and directs staff to report to colleagues who have since left the Centre. An updated policy is required to ensure the Barbican can fulfil its statutory duty to safeguard children and adults at risk.
- 7. An audit of the current Safeguarding Policy and consultation with the Centre's cross-departmental Safeguarding Group occurred between June and September 2022. An external consultant identified a lack of awareness of safeguarding issues and confusion over the reporting procedures should a Safeguarding concern arise or a disclosure be made outside of the Creative Learning Team.
- 8. As a result of the above, safeguarding was included on the Corporate Risk Register in September 2022 with mitigations including updating the Safeguarding Policy and increasing training.

Proposals

- 9. An updated Safeguarding Policy is presented to the Committee for review and approval. This has been developed with recommendations based on best practice and expands the current procedures in the Creative Learning Team across the Centre.
- 10. Following the approval of an updated Safeguarding Policy, the author proposes the below implementation plan, which has been devised in consultation with the Centre's CEO Claire Spencer and Safeguarding Consultant Lesley Wood:
 - i. Include Safeguarding on the Director's/Management Team meeting agendas for November/December to discuss the central role the Centre's Senior Management will play in following and implementing the new policy.
 - ii. Upload the Safeguarding Policy as well as all of its appendices independently on the intranet. Ensure the public can easily access the policy by including a link on the Barbican Centre's website.
 - iii. Centralise the Centre's Safeguarding records by adopting the Creative Learning Team's Safeguarding Log.
 - iv. Identify ongoing Safeguarding expertise that the Centre's Safeguarding Champions can draw upon on a routine and ad hoc basis to ensure the Centre's actions are appropriate, adequate and performed with best practice.

- v. Increase the knowledge and level of responsibility at the senior level by shifting the Centre's cross-departmental Safeguarding Group to a group of Safeguarding Champions with membership comprised of Senior Leadership across each area of the Centre (membership listed in Appendix 2 of the Safeguarding Policy appendix). The responsibilities of these Champions are detailed in Section 8 of the policy. This group will meet at least once a quarter to discuss the safeguarding concerns reported, actions taken and risks that arose in the preceding quarter.
- vi. Implement mandatory minimum e-learning courses for employees (safeguarding children and young people), with additional training for managers (safeguarding for managers). These e-learning courses should be completed every three years. As required, additional mandatory training will be identified by area Safeguarding Champions and Managers.
- vii. Update the Safeguarding Policy annually to reflect changes in legislation, internal/external contacts and best practice.

Options

Policy:

- 1. Approve the policy
- 2. Approve the policy with recommended edits, additions and/or alterations
- 3. Reject the policy and instruct a new version drafted based on new considerations to be re-submitted to the Committee

Implementation plan (detailed in proposal):

- 1. Approve the plan
- 2. Approve the plan with recommendations edits, additions, alterations and/or deadlines
- 3. Reject the plan and instruct a new version drafted based on new considerations to be re-submitted to the Committee

Key Data

None

Corporate & Strategic Implications

- Strategic implications:
 - People are safe and feel safe Children and adults at risk are safeguarded and can access our safeguarding commitments and procedures to keep them safe
 - People enjoy good health and wellbeing Children and adults at risk can enjoy their experiences fully because they are safeguarded
 - Business are trusted and socially and environmentally responsible Our safeguarding policy and procedures will be publicly accessible, demonstrating our commitment to safeguarding and legal duties.
- Financial implications
 - o None
- Resource implications

- Senior Management will need to within their existing capacity, undergo training and dedicate time regularly and as needs require to follow the policy.
- o Legal implications
 - Children Act 1989
 - o Children Act 2004
 - Mental Capacity Act 2005
 - Care Act 2014
- o Risk implications
 - Failure to put a Safeguarding Policy and adequate Safeguarding procedures in place leave the Centre vulnerable to breaching the above legal implications
- Equalities implications:
 - Safeguarding policies and procedures ensure those who are at risk of harm (children and adults at risk) are protected regardless of their characteristics.
- Climate implications
 - o None
- Security implications
 - None

Conclusion

11. This Safeguarding Policy and implementation plan is presented to the Committee for review and approval. If approved, it will supersede any and all previous Barbican Safeguarding policies and procedures.

Appendices:

Appendix 1 – Safeguarding Policy

Report author

Barbican Futures Planning Officer, Creative Collaboration and Learning

E: Beth.Bryan@Barbican.org.uk

T: 0207 382 7381

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted